
CITY OF DAPHNE 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING AGENDA 

1705 MAIN STREET, DAPHNE, ALABAMA 

AUGUST 17, 2015 

     6:30 P.M.  

                                                                  
1.  CALL TO ORDER 

 

2.  ROLL CALL  

     INVOCATION /  Reverend Richard Mueller of Holy Trinity Lutheran Church 
 

 
 

     PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

 

3.  APPROVE MINUTES: Council Meeting Minutes / August 3, 2015  

 

                                                     Council Work Session Minutes / August 10, 2015 

 

PRESENTATION:     Eagle Scout Project / Jesse Bartle, Troop 82 

 

PUBLIC HEARINGS: 

             a.)   Pre-zone:   The Bills’ No. 2, LLC 

                    Located:        Southwest corner of the intersection of Champions Way and AL Hwy. 181 

                    Present zoning:  RSF-1, Single Family Residential District, Baldwin County District 15 

                    Requested zoning:  PUD, Planned Unit Development, City of Daphne 

                    Recommendation:  Unanimous favorable 

 

            b.)   Annexation:   The Bills’ No. 2, LLC 

                   Location:    Southwest corner of the intersection of Champions Way and AL Hwy. 181 

           Recommendation:      Unanimous favorable 

                                                    

4. REPORTS OF STANDING COMMITTEES: 

A. FINANCE COMMITTEE – Fry    

Review minutes / August 10
th
  

1.)    Ordinances 

         a.)  ADECA: Additional Appropriation of Funds:  Village Point Park Preserve Trail Extension /  

               Ordinance 2015-48 
 

         b.)  Appropriation of Funds:  Daphne High School Fund Raiser / Taste of the Eastern Shore /  

                                                          Ordinance 2015-49 

 

         c.)   Job Reclassification:  Fire Battalion Chief / Ordinance 2015-50 

 

         d.)    Appropriation of Funds:  Amending the City of Daphne Pay Plan / Ordinance 2015-36 / Amendments                   

                                                          A & B 
 

2.)   Resolutions: 
        a.) Village Point Park Preserve Trail Extension  / Resolution 2015-53 

 

        b.)  ALDOT Funding Agreement: Preliminary Engineering: Turning Lane at Sehoy Blvd. & Longue Vue   

               Blvd.   /  Resolution 2015-54 

 

        c.)  ALDOT Funding Agreement:  Construction: Turning Lane at Sehoy Blvd. & Longue Vue Blvd.  /    

              Resolution 2015-55 

 

 

 1



  

COUNCIL MEETING AGENDA                               AUGUST 17, 2015                                            PAGE   2 
 

        3.)  Motions: 
       To go out to bid for repairs to Fire Station #2 building with cost to come back to Council for     

       appropriation approval 

 

 4.)  Financial Reports: 

 Treasurer’s Report  /  July 2015 

 

 Sales & Use Tax Collections  /  June 2015 

 

 Lodging Tax Collections  /  June 2015 

 

B. BUILDINGS & PROPERTY  COMMITTEE -  Davis  

Review minutes / August 3
rd

  

 

a.)  Resolution 2015-52 / Declaring five (5) Crown Vic’s Surplus 

 

C. PUBLIC SAFETY -  Rudicell   

 

D. CODE ENFORCEMENT/ORDINANCE COMMITTEE  -  Scott  

 

E. PUBLIC WORKS COMMITTEE / SOLID WASTE AUTHORITY – LeJeune 

 

5. REPORTS OF SPECIAL BOARDS & COMMISSIONS:  

    

A. BOARD OF ZONING ADJUSTMENTS  – Adrienne Jones   

 

B. DOWNTOWN REDEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY – Conaway   

 

C. INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT BOARD – Davis  

 

D. LIBRARY BOARD - Lake  

 

E. PLANNING COMMISSION – Scott 

      

F. RECREATION BOARD – LeJeune 

Name Lake Forest Park 

                  

G. UTILITY BOARD – Fry 

Review minutes / June 24
th
  

 

6.   MAYOR’S REPORT 

 

7. CITY ATTORNEY’S REPORT 

     MOTION:  To hire Richard Davis of Davis and Fields Law Firm to represent the city in a claim against BP 

 

8. DEPARTMENT HEAD’S REPORT 

 

9. CITY CLERK’S REPORT 

    a.)  Event Permit /  S.E.E.D.S. 12
th
 Annual Classic Rock and Fun Run / March 5, 2016 

    

    b.)  ABC License / ES Chamber Foundation / 27
th
 Annual Jubilee Festival / 240 – Non-Profit Tax Exempt 

                                               

 10. PUBLIC PARTICIPATION   

 

 2



  

COUNCIL MEETING AGENDA                               AUGUST 17, 2015                                            PAGE   3 
 
11. RESOLUTIONS AND ORDINANCES: 

 

        RESOLUTIONS: 

a.)  Resolution 2015-52. . . . . . . . . . . .Declaring Certain Property Surplus & Authorize Mayor to Dispose 

                                                               (One (1) 2004 & Four (4) 2006 Crown Vic’s) 

 

b.)  Resolution 2015-53. . . . . . . . . . . .ADECA: Additional Appropriation of Funds Village Point Park Preserve Trail    

                                                               Extension 

 

c.)   Resolution 2015-54. . . . . . . . . . . . ALDOT Funding Agreement: Preliminary Engineering: Turning Lane at Sehoy Blvd.    

                                                                & Longue Vue Blvd. 

 

d.)   Resolution 2015-55. . . . . . . . . . . . ALDOT Funding Agreement: Construction: Turning Lane at Sehoy Blvd. &  

                                                                Longue Vue Blvd. 

 

e.)   Resolution 2015-56. . . . . . . . . . . . Revisions to City Street Map 

 

                                                                     

       ORDINANCES:  

 

         2ND
  READ    

a.) Ordinance 2015-36 (Amendment “A”). . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . Appropriation of Funds: Amending the City of        

                                                                                                 Daphne Pay Scale   

 

b.)  Ordinance 2015-36 (Amendment “B”). . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . Appropriation of Funds: Amending the City   

                                                                                                 of  Daphne Pay Scale          

 

d.)   Ordinance 2015-45. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . Amending the Policy for Community Grants / Ordinance 2014-16  

 

         

         1
ST

 READ 
a.)  Ordinance 2015-46. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . Pre-Zone:  Property Located at the Southwest Corner of the Intersection of 

                                                                of  the Intersection of Champion’s Way and AL Hwy 181 / The Bill’s No. 2, 

                                                                 LLC  

 

b.   Ordinance 2015-47. . . . . . . . . . . . . . .Annexation:  Property Located at the Southwest Corner of the Intersection of 

                                                                of  the Intersection of Champion’s Way and AL Hwy 181 / The Bill’s No. 2, 

                                                                 LLC  

 

c.)   Ordinance 2015-48. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . Appropriation of Funds:  Village Point Park Preserve Trail Extension 

 

d.)   Ordinance 2015-49. . . . . . . . . . . . . . .Appropriation of Funds: Daphne High School Fund Raiser / Taste of the 

                                                           Eastern Shore 

 

e.)   Ordinance 2015-50. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . Job Reclassification: Battalion Chief 

 

               

12.    COUNCIL COMMENTS        

 

13.  ADJOURN 

3



CITY OF DAPHNE 

CITY COUNCIL 

 

ROLL CALL 

 

CITY COUNCIL: 

COUNCILMAN RUDICELL   PRESENT____  ABSENT____ 

COUNCILMAN LAKE    PRESENT____  ABSENT____ 

COUNCILMAN FRY    PRESENT____  ABSENT____ 

COUNCILMAN SCOTT    PRESENT____  ABSENT____ 

COUNCILMAN LEJEUNE   PRESENT____  ABSENT____ 

COUNCILMAN DAVIS    PRESENT____  ABSENT____ 

COUNCIL PRESIDENT CONAWAY  PRESENT____  ABSENT____ 

 

MAYOR: 

MAYOR HAYGOOD    PRESENT____  ABSENT____ 

 

CITY CLERK: 

REBECCA HAYES     PRESENT____  ABSENT____ 

 

CITY ATTORNEY: 

JAY ROSS      PRESENT____  ABSENT____ 

4



AUGUST 3, 2015 
CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

REGULAR BUSINESS MEETING 

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 

P
ag

e1
 

                                                                                       

1.    CALL TO ORDER: 
There being a quorum present Council President Conaway called the meeting to order at 6:30 p.m.       

 

2.    ROLL CALL  

COUNCIL MEMBERS PRESENT:    

Tommie Conaway; Pat Rudicell; John Lake; Randy Fry; Ron Scott; Robin LeJeune; Joe Davis. 

 

Also present: Mayor Haygood; Rebecca Hayes, City Clerk; Melissa Wilt, Assistant City Clerk;  Jay Ross, City Attorney; 

Kevin Boucher, Attorney; Michael Beron, Attorney; James White, Fire Chief; Vickie Hinman, HR Director; David 

McKelroy, Recreation Director; Richard Johnson, Public Works Director; Margaret Thigpen, Civic Center Director; Kelli 

Kichler, Finance Director/Treasurer;  Adrienne Jones, Planning Director; Tonja Young, Library Director; Captain Judd 

Beedy, Police Department; Ashley Campbell, Environmental Programs Manager; Dorothy Morrison, DRA/Beautification 

Committee; Willie Robison, BZA; Larry Cooke, BZA; Don Ouellette, Environmental Advisory Committee; Al Guarisco, 

Village Point Foundation; Bob Segalla, Utility Board; Selena Vaughn, Beautification Committee/Village Point 

Foundation; Tomasina Werner, Beautification Committee; Mickey Boykin, Daphne Museum; Employees: Tom Walker, 

Denise Penry, Helen Burdette, Bill Coley; Dionne Davis; CJ White; John Williams; Pat Johnson. 

 

Absent:  David Carpenter, Police Chief; Richard Merchant, Building Official; Michael Hoyt, Municipal Judge. 

 

INVOCATION/PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE: 

Pastor Grant Barber retired chaplain for the Police Department gave the invocation. 

3.    APPROVE MINUTES:    

July 20, 2015 Council Meeting Minutes 
There being no corrections the July 20, 2015 minutes were approved as written.  

 

RECOGNITION:  Pastor Grant Barber, Retired Police Department Chaplain 

Mayor Haygood read and presented the certificate of recognition to Pastor Barber for his service as Police Department 

Chaplain. 

 

PRESENTATION:     S.E.E.D.S. 

Mr. Philip Durant spoke to council regarding the raising of funds for S.E.E.D.S.  He said their goal if four legged: 

1. Private  2.  Fundraisers  3.   Grants     4.   City Support  

 

4.    REPORT OF STANDING COMMITTEES: 

 A.   FINANCE COMMITTEE – Fry 

The next meeting will be August 10
th
 4:30 p.m.             

 

B.   BUILDINGS & PROPERTY COMMITTEE – Davis 

The committee met today, and the minutes will be in the next packet. 

 

C.   PUBLIC SAFETY COMMITTEE – Rudicell  

The next meeting will be August 17
th
.  

 

D.  CODE ENFORCEMENT/ORDINANCE COMMITTEE – Scott 

The next meeting will be August 17
th
.  

5



AUGUST 3, 2015 
CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

REGULAR BUSINESS MEETING 

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 

P
ag

e2
 

 

E.   PUBLIC WORKS COMMITTEE – LeJeune 

The committee met this afternoon, and the minutes will be in the next packet.  Councilman LeJeune reported the work 

on the round-a-bout is coming to a close, and will be open before school starts.  The Main Street resurfacing is also 

coming to an end. 

 

 

5.    REPORTS OF SPECIAL BOARDS & COMMISSIONS: 

      A.   Board of Zoning Adjustments – Adrienne Jones 

No report. 

 

     B.   Downtown Redevelopment Authority – Conaway 

The July 22
nd

 minutes are in the packet.  The next meeting is August 26
th
 at 5:30 p.m. 

 

    C.   Industrial Development Board – Davis 

The July 27
th
 minutes are in the packet, and the next meeting will be August 24

th
 at 6:00 p.m.  Councilman Davis 

mentioned that three councilmen attended the July 27
th
 meeting, and the meeting was very productive. 

 

    D.   Library Board – Lake 

The February 12
th
, March 12

th
, April 9

th
, May 14

th
 and June 11

th
 minutes are in the packet. Councilman Lake reported 

the usage of the meeting room at the Library has increased by 77%.  The next meeting will be August 13
th
. 

 

    E.   Planning Commission – Scott 

The minutes for the June 25
th
 meeting are in the packet along with the staff report for the July 23

rd
 meeting.  

Councilman Scott mentioned there is an opening on the commission.  The next meeting will be August 27
th
 at 5:00 

p.m. 

 

F.   Recreation Board – LeJeune 

Councilman LeJeune reported that surveying is being done at Lott Park and Trione.  They are working on a schedule 

and a place for the Park Team to meet.  The next Recreation Board meeting is August 12
th
.   

 

  G.   Utility Board – Fry 

The next meeting will be August 26
th
 at 5:00 p.m.   

a.)  Appoint/Reappoint board members 

b.)  Selena Vaughn resume 

 

              NAME                                                               VOTES                                                     TOTAL 

 

 

Fenton Jenkins 

 

Rudicell, Davis, Conaway 

 

3 

 

Billy Mayhand 

 

Rudicell, Lake, Fry, Scott, LeJeune, Davis, Conaway 

 

7 

 

Selena Vaughn 

 

Lake, Fry, Scott, LeJeune 

 

4 

 

 

  

 

  

6



AUGUST 3, 2015 
CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

REGULAR BUSINESS MEETING 

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 

P
ag

e3
 

MOTION BY Councilman Fry to reappoint Mr. Billy Mayhand to the Utility Board for a six (6) year term / 

Term August 3, 2015 – June 12, 2021, and to appoint Mrs. Selena Vaughn to the Utility Board for a six (6) year 

term / Term August 3, 2015 – June 12, 2021.  Seconded by Councilman Davis. 

 

MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 

 

 

Council President Conaway welcomed Boy Scout Troop 82 to the council meeting. 

 

 

6.   MAYOR’S REPORT 

Mayor Haygood said he has received reports that Uber internet taxi service is servicing the Eastern Shore.  He has not 

had any direct reports from the Code Enforcement Officer, and he has enquired as to how that would be treated under 

the city’s business license ordinance.  The Revenue Officer has looked at it, and believes it should be treated as any 

other taxi service.  He will continue to look at this, and said the Ordinance Committee may want to look it also.  He 

reported that the city was awarded a TAP Grant from the State of Alabama, and it will be used to install sidewalks 

along CR 13 from the middle school all the way up to the high school at Champion’s Way. This will be about a 

$400,000 project.  He reported that inroads have been made with the Metropolitan Planning Organization which 

receives federal funds that are to be spent on classified roads along the Eastern Shore, and Sehoy subdivision has made 

a request for a turning lane on CR 13, because of a backup of traffic at that location.  They have been able to advance 

the project along, and it has moved to an approved risk, and will be continuing to move along to funding along with 

some other projects.  He reported that Mr. Don Terry, Planning Commission member, relocated thus creating a 

vacancy on the Planning Commission.  He said that Mr. Terry did a great job for a number years, and his service is 

very much appreciated. 

 

7.  CITY ATTORNEY REPORT: 

Mr. Ross requested council to enter into an Executive Session at the end of the meeting to discuss one pending 

litigation, and a possible legal action.  No council action will be necessary. 

 

 

8.   DEPARTMENT HEAD COMMENTS: 

Margaret Thigpen – Civic Center Director – reported the Taste of the Eastern Shore will be August 20
th
, and the 

lineup of vendors is on the website. 

 

 

9.  CITY CLERK REPORT:  
    a.)  Event Permit  /  Out of Darkness Walk /American Foundation for Suicide Prevention  / October 18, 2015 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Scott to approve the Events Permit for the Out of Darkness Walk /American 

Foundation for Suicide Prevention  / October 18, 2015.  Seconded by Councilman Fry. 

 

MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 

 

 

 

   

    b.) Nominations for the County Board of Equalization:  Kit Smith 

7



AUGUST 3, 2015 
CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

REGULAR BUSINESS MEETING 

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 

P
ag

e4
 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Scott to nominate Kit Smith for the Board of Equalization.  Seconded by 

Councilman Rudicell. 

 

MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 

 

10.    PUBLIC PARTICIPATION 

Ms. Victoria Phelps – Worchester Drive – spoke regarding the Daphne Innovation 
+
Science Complex project saying 

she is looking forward to finding out facts at the Lake Forest POA meeting tomorrow. 

 

Mr. Fenton Jenkins – Daphne – spoke regarding his term on the Utility Board from 2007-2015 saying he enjoyed his 

service on the board, and that there were no ill feelings against anybody.  He thanked council for appointing him to the 

board. 

 

Mrs. Mary Ann Hampton – Lakewood Drive – spoke regarding the Daphne Innovation 
+
Science Complex saying they 

have had sparse information regarding the project, and ask for more information. 

 

Mr. Michael ??? (did not give last name) – Schooley Circle – spoke regarding funding for the Daphne Innovation 
+
Science Complex 

 

Mr. Rod Drummond – 367 Ridgewood Drive – spoke regarding the sound system for the council chambers. 

 

Mr. Steve Sasser – 106 Lynette Circle – Chairman of the Lake Forest Property Owners Association – spoke 

regarding his appreciation for what the city has done for Lake Forest, and wants to communicate with the city and 

work together.  

 

Mr. Henry Lawson – 104 Boosketuh Circle – spoke regarding the Daphne Innovation 
+
Science Complex and the 

rezoning of the entire acreage on Champion’s Way.   

 

Mr. David Dueitt – 104 D’Olive Blvd. -  spoke regarding putting off the Daphne Innovation 
+
Science Complex and 

finishing the recreations projects first. 

 

 

11.    RESOLUTIONS & ORDINANCES: 

 

        RESOLUTIONS: 

a.)  Resolution 2015-49. . . . . . . . . . . . Application for Additional Funding:  NRCS/EWP Project: Old       

                                                               Pump Station / LF, Judicial Center / Wacky Shrimp / 

                                                               Palmetto-Creekside / Maizie’s Gulch-West of       

                                                               Main Street & Canterbury Subdivision  

 

b.)  Resolution 2015-50. . . . . . . . . . . .Appointing Board Members to The Renaissance Improvement District 

 

 

 

c.)   Resolution 2015-51. . . . . . . . . . . .Appointing Board Members to The Renaissance Cooperative District 

8



AUGUST 3, 2015 
CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

REGULAR BUSINESS MEETING 

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 

P
ag

e5
 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Scott to waive the reading of Resolutions 2015-49, 2015-50 and 2015-51. 

Seconded by Councilman Fry. 

 

MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Scott to adopt Resolution 2015-49. Seconded by Councilman Fry. 

 

MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Scott to adopt Resolution 2015-50 and 2015-51.  Seconded by Councilman Lake. 

 

MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 

 

 

ORDINANCES: 
 

          2
ND

  READ  
a.) Ordinance 2015-36. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .Appropriation of Funds: Amending the City of Daphne Pay Scale 

                                                               

b.) Ordinance 2015-40. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .Appropriation of Funds:  Daphne Art Center Roof 

                                                                        Repair 

 

c.)  Ordinance 2015-41. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .Appropriation of Funds: Justice Center Generator 

                                                                         Replacement/Repair  

 

d.)  Ordinance 2015-42. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . Additional Appropriation of Funds: Grant Management 

                                                                         For the Tiawasee Creek Coastal Impact Assistance 

                                                                         Program (CIAP), National Fish and Wildlife  

                                      Foundation (NFWF) & AL Department of Environmental 

                               Management (ADEM) Grant Tiawasee Creek Watershed 

               Restoration 

 

e.)  Ordinance 2015-44. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . Appropriation of Funds:  Daphne High School Project: 

                                                                                         Recording of City Council Meetings 

MOTION BY Councilman Rudicell to waive the reading of Ordinance 2015-36.  Seconded by Councilman 

LeJeune. 

  

MOTION  CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 

 

 

 

 

9



AUGUST 3, 2015 
CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

REGULAR BUSINESS MEETING 

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 

P
ag

e6
 

MOTION BY Councilman Rudicell to adopt Ordinance 2015-36.  Seconded by Councilman Scott. 

 

Motion by Councilman Fry to amend the ordinance to include: For non-director pay including Public Safety an 

amount increase of 2% or 40 cents per hour, whichever is greater to begin with the first pay period in August, 

and this ordinance will be a first read.  Seconded by Councilman Scott. 

 

 

VOTE ON AMENDMENT 

 

ROLL CALL VOTE 

Rudicell  Nay     LeJeune  Nay 

Lake   Aye     Davis   Aye 

Fry   Aye     Conaway  Aye 

Scott   Aye 

 

AYE   Lake, Fry, Scott, Davis, Conaway    NAY   Rudicell, LeJeune 

 

MOTION CARRIED 

 

The original motion for Ordinance 2015-36 as amended  is a first read 

 

 

 

MOTION BY Councilman LeJeune to waive the reading of Ordinance 2015-40.  Seconded by Councilman Lake. 

 

MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 

 

MOTION BY Councilman LeJeune adopt  Ordinance 2015-40.  Seconded by Councilman Lake. 

 

MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Scott to waive the reading of Ordinances 2015-41 and 2015-42.  Seconded by 

Councilman LeJeune. 

 

MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Lake to adopt  Ordinances 2015-41 and 2015-42.  Seconded by Councilman Davis. 

 

MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Scott to waive the reading of Ordinance 2015-44.  Seconded by Councilman LeJeune. 

 

MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 

 

 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Scott to adopt of Ordinance 2015-44.  Seconded by Councilman LeJeune. 

10



AUGUST 3, 2015 
CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

REGULAR BUSINESS MEETING 

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 

P
ag

e7
 

 

MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 

 

12.    COUNCIL COMMENTS 

Councilman Davis said it is important to have citizens input, and it is important to share facts with the citizens, and the 

facts come out as they come about.  He would like folks to have a chance to hear the total picture, and one of the 

questions that has been asked is why didn’t they come out with it at first.  He said it is because it is Economic and 

Industrial Development, and while it is not done in a vacuum it has to be done discreetly, and step by step.  The IDB is 

very conscious of the community and their concerns.  He invited all to come to the meeting in Lake Forest.  

 

Councilman Rudicell spoke regarding putting something in an ordinance without a dollar amount, and he wanted folks 

to know that is not how they normally do business.  He said there are some funding issues regarding the DISC project, 

and it has not been decided what the funding is and how it is going to be made.  No one has been able to tell him that 

there is going to be absolutely no city funds used for this project.  He asked that question three times at the IDB 

meeting, and he never got the answer that it was a resounding no there won’t be any city funds used.  He mentioned 

that the sound system is being addressed in the budget process. 

 

Councilman Lake spoke regarding using city funds for the Daphne Innovation 
+
Science Complex project and 

infrastructure.  He said they need to use funds for recreation and sewering the city. 

 

Councilman Fry thanked folks for coming out.  He said they need to keep holding council accountable.  He also 

thanked the Boy Scouts for coming out.  He thinks the turning lane at CR 13 will help the traffic.  Councilman Fry said 

an important cause and a pet project of his is to take care of the employees.  He asked department heads to thank the 

employees. 

 

Councilman Scott said that the Planning Department sends out the Planning Commission agenda to a lot of folks.  He 

said maybe they should send on to Lake Forest.  He discussed the incorporation of the IDB and they can do. 

 

Councilman LeJeune appreciated the folks coming out, and he looks forward to the broadcasting of the council 

meetings.  He said he had questions regarding the Daphne Innovation 
+
Science Complex project, and he attended the 

last IDB meeting and had a great dialogue, and he learned a lot.  He hoped folks will come out tomorrow night.  He 

said Daphne is a great place to live, and businesses that follow is retail.  He said citizens need to ask questions and 

push leaders to answer questions.  He feels they need to look at different kinds of businesses, upscale businesses, 

bringing higher pay scales. 

 

Mayor Haygood commented on the pay scale ordinance and not having the figures for the ordinance.  They have to 

watch the numbers so they do not exceed 60% of the city’s budget.  He said that The Taste of the Eastern Shore is a 

fund raiser for Daphne High School, and hopes that folks will attend.  He said there are three priorities for the city 

which are sewer, recreation and a technology park, and they have three different funding sources. They should pursue 

growth for the city.  He thanked Pastor Barber for his service. 

 

Council President Conaway thanked folks for coming out, and that the top priority was sewers. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

11



AUGUST 3, 2015 
CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

REGULAR BUSINESS MEETING 

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 

P
ag

e8
 

13.   ADJOURN: 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Scott to adjourn into Executive Session to discuss pending litigation and threatened 

litigation with no action required of council .  The session will last for 15 minutes.    Seconded by Councilman 

Davis. 

 

Jay Ross, City Attorney, certified that the foregoing reason to adjourn into Executive Session is appropriate 

according to the Alabama Open Meetings Act. 

 

ROLL CALL VOTE 

Rudicell  Aye     LeJeune  Aye 

Lake   Aye     Davis   Aye 

Fry   Aye     Conaway  Aye 

Scott   Aye 

 

MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 

 

 

THERE BEING NO FURTHER BUSINESS TO DISCUSS, THE MEETING ADJOURNED AT 8:14 P.M. 

 

 

 

 

Respectfully submitted by,                                   Certification of Presiding Officer 

                               

                                        

__________________________________   _____________________________   

Rebecca A. Hayes,      Tommie Conaway,     

City Clerk       Council President 

12



AUGUST 10, 2015 

CITY COUNCIL WORK SESSION 

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 

 

P
ag

e1
 

   

COUNCIL MEMBERS PRESENT: Tommie Conaway; John Lake; Randy Fry; Robin LeJeune.  

 

Also present: Mayor Haygood; Melissa Wilt, Assistant City Clerk; Jay Ross, City Attorney; Kevin, 

Boucher, Adams & Reese; Kelli Kichler, Finance Director; Philip Durant, SEEDS President; Becky 

Parke, SEEDS Interim Executive Director; Scott Koser, SEEDS Director of Research; Toni 

Fassbender, IDB.  

 

Absent:  Pat Rudicell; Ron Scott; Joe Davis; Rebecca Hayes, City Clerk 

 

Council President Conaway called the meeting to order at 6:33 p.m. 

 

1.  PRESENTATION: S.E.E.D.S 

 

Philip Durant, President of S.E.E.D.S. introduced Scott Koser and Becky Parke, and they 

explained their purpose this evening was to clarify fundraising efforts. Scott Poser stated SEEDS 

has raised over $250,000 over the last 5 years with $160,000 going directly to schools; difference 

going to cover costs and administration. Mama Mia is a large, well-publicized event that only 

raised $2,800 in net proceeds. Their goal is to have funding through donations, city support, the 

5k annual race/other fundraisers and other grant writing opportunities.  

 

Councilwoman Conaway asked if the $35,000 awarded from the City went directly to the schools. 

Mr. Poser did not know exactly how it is distributed, but knew there was a plan to feed it into the 

schools. 

 

Council Lake stated he recommended going back to doing daytime presentations for SEEDS 

which could gain awareness, and hopefully donations. Mr. Poser agreed. 

 

Becky Parke stated Mama Mia was a huge expense and a taxing day on volunteers; therefore, it 

was decided to put that energy into the spring 5k race that already brings in a larger profit than 

Mama Mia. They have added internet payments for the next race and will promote it more in 

hopes to increase participation and profit.  

 

Phillip Durant closed stating they are still looking for an Executive Director for SEEDS and hope 

to appoint one soon. Becky Parke has been doing a great job. There has to be expectations set as 

the Executive Director is a part time position. 

 

2. PRESENTATION: PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT (PUD) PROCESS 

 

Adrienne Jones, Director of Community Development, presented the PUD process to 

provide better clarification of the steps and requirements. The presentation explained 

annexation procedure, details requested from developer and negotiations allowed between 

developer and Council. Council requested copy of PowerPoint presentation.   

 

  

13



AUGUST 10, 2015 

CITY COUNCIL WORK SESSION 

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 

 

P
ag

e2
 

 

3.   PRESENTATION: DAPHNE INNOVATION + SCIENCE COMPLEX 
 

Toni Fassbender of the Industrial Development Board introduced the presentation and asked if 

there were any questions on the DISC project. 

 

Councilman Lake stated he does not like the name of the proposed project; the majority of 

businesses would most likely not be in technology industry.    

 

Mayor Haygood presented the DISC project providing an overview of the project including 

design, location, transportation access points and unique infrastructure benefits that will appeal 

to companies looking for office space. He also shared there is current interest from companies 

on the project who are looking for Class A office space and how the growth of Airbus in 

Mobile will add the need for companies’ presence in the area. He hopes to design the grounds 

to promote community events, similar to Eastern Shore Center that has the splash pad and 

stage for performances. Mayor Haygood stated the response from the Planning Commission 

has been favorable.  

 

Councilman Lake questioned the distance between the traffic light existing at Hwy 181 and 

Champions Way to that of the proposed traffic light at the main entrance of the DISC project.  

ALDOT requires a minimum of ½ mile distance between lights.  

 

Mayor Haygood responded that ALDOT is aware of project and right now the process is at a 

high level and will get into specifics at later time. He responded to speculations that there will 

not be low income housing on the property, there is no initial plan to widen Champion’s Way, 

and the water shed run off requirements would be stricter in the city than if property is left in 

county. Mayor stated there is potential to have sub phases of the project and went into some 

detail of the funding of the project through grants and the IDB.  

 

Councilman Lake shifted focus to the use of BP funds for this project. He stated the BP funds 

can be used for other purposes: environmental, sewer, recreation, etc. He requested a definite 

answer from City Attorney Jay Ross on other uses that would be approved. He also reminded 

that no one on Council knows about the contract.  

 

Attorney Jay Ross said, in regards to the use of BP money, he spoke with Governor’s Chief 

Legal Advisor and the funds would not be allowed for sewer, a splash pad or recreation. He is 

hoping to get a scope of uses for the funds. There was a contract involving the Mayor 

regarding allocation of funds from the city account to IDB. He explained that a resolution 

passed in 2010 allows the Mayor to reallocate funds without City Council approval. Council 

can pursue backing out of reallocation agreement.  

 

Councilman Fry questioned if option for land purchase had been executed. Mayor confirmed 

signed originally as City of Daphne and now signed by IDB. Councilman Fry questioned 

Mayor’s ability to sign contract without Council approval. Attorney Jay Ross confirmed there  

 

14



AUGUST 10, 2015 

CITY COUNCIL WORK SESSION 

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 

 

P
ag

e3
 

 

was an agreement, and that Mayor Haygood did not commit city funds for purchase. 

Councilman Fry questioned  

 

funding of project, understands IDB has funds to purchase property but not build infrastructure. 

Mayor stated IDB is looking at grants, sale of outparcels and future funds of IDB.  

 

Councilman Fry questioned if the lobbying firm would now be tied up with DISC at the 

expense of other city projects. He also questioned development costs, such as roads, grating 

and utilities, and he asked the Mayor to provide breakdown of funding and costs. He also 

wants to protect Daphne Utilities, and requested a guarantee Daphne Utilities would not be 

asked to fund infrastructure. Mayor responded there is no intent to ask Daphne Utilities for 

funding.  

 

Council Lake insisted the BP money can be better utilized towards other city projects, for 

example building out Highway 90 off I-10. He stated the Governor has not heard from the 

citizens of Daphne. Council needs to have other options for use of BP money. 

 

Mayor Haygood reminded Council the length of time the BP money has been in the city 

account and there has not been one request for funding a project.  

 

Councilman Lake responded the Council should have been made aware of the plan and funding 

request.  

 

4.  PAY SCALE ADJUSTMENT/KELLI KICHLER, FINANCE DIRECTOR 

 

Kelli Kichler stated the pay scale adjustment was discussed in length at the Finance Committee 

meeting prior to the Work Session and asked if there were any more questions on the matter.  

There was no further discussion.  

 

ANYTHING ELSE DEEMED NECESSARY 

No other business to discuss. 

 

 

THERE BEING NO FURTHER BUSINESS TO DISCUSS, THE MEETING ADJOURNED 

AT 8:16 P.M. 

 

 

Respectfully submitted by,         Certification of Presiding Officer:  

                                                     

                               

___________________________         _____________________________                                                                                  

Melissa Wilt,           Tommie Conaway,                                                                 

Assistant City Clerk      Council President                           

  

15



 

 

 

PUBLIC HEARING  

 

AUGUST 17, 2015 
 

TO CONSIDER: 

 

 
 

             a.)   Pre-zone:   The Bills’ No. 2, LLC 

                    Located:        Southwest corner of the intersection of 

Champions Way and AL Hwy. 181 

                    Present zoning:  RSF-1, Single Family Residential District, 

Baldwin County District 15 

                    Requested zoning:  PUD, Planned Unit Development, City of 

Daphne 

                    Recommendation:  Unanimous favorable 

 

 

 

            b.)   Annexation:   The Bills’ No. 2, LLC 

                   Location:   Southwest corner of the intersection of 

Champions Way and AL Hwy. 181 

              Recommendation:    Unanimous favorable 
 

16



17



18



19



20



21



22



23



24



25



26



27



28



29



30



31



32



33



34



35



36



37



38



39



40



41



42



43



44



45



46



47



CITY OF DAPHNE 

FINANCE COMMITTEE MINUTES 
AUGUST 10, 2015 

4:30 P.M. 
 
I.      CALL TO ORDER/ROLL CALL 
 
The meeting was called to order at 4:30 p.m.  Present were Chairman Randy Fry, Councilwoman Mrs. 
Conaway, Councilman Ron Scott, Councilman John Lake, Councilman Robin LeJeune,  Finance Director Kelli 
Kichler, Senior Accountant Suzânne Henson, Human Resource Director Vickie Hinman, Revenue Officer Jamie 
Smith, and City Attorney Kevin Boucher. 
 
Councilman Pat Rudicell and Councilman Joe Davis were absent. Mayor Dane Haygood arrived at 4:41 p.m. 
 
Also in attendance were, Public Works Director Richard Johnson, Public Works Deputy Director William 
Eringman, Civic Center Director Margaret Thigpen, Community Development Director Adrienne Jones, Fire 
Battalion Chief Kenny Hanak,  CD Administrative Secretary Pat Johnson, PW Accountant Denise Penry, and 
Mr. Larry Cooke, BZA.  
 

I.      PUBLIC PARTICIPATION  
 
There was no public participation. 
 

II.      BUSINESS LICENSE REPORT 
 

1. Report: New Business Licenses – July, 2015    
      
The Business Licenses Report was included in the packet. Total business license issued YTD is 4,246 -  up 362 
from last year 
 

 79 - Total Business License issued in July -  down 30 from July 2014 (109 licenses issued).   

 35 - Renewals – out of the 79  

 42 - New businesses with 6 of those having a physical location in Daphne and 
   2  - Prior year licenses.   
 
Mrs. Smith reviewed the Business License and Delinquencies report.   
 

III.    HUMAN RESOURCES BUSINESS 
 

       A.  Update on Human Resources Department Activity 
       
Mrs. Vickie Hinman reviewed the Human Resource Report including open position status. 
 

Positions      Status 
Firefighter      DOH: 8/20/2015 
PT School Crossing Guard (Ongoing) (3)  DOH: 8/13/2015 (2) 
PSW Sr. Grounds (Internal)    DOP: 7/23/2015 
PSW Grounds      Posting closes: 8/6/2015 
Corrections Officer     Posting closes: 8/19/2015 
Planner (Community Development)   Open 
PT Marketing Coordinator    Open 
Executive Assistant     Open 
IT Computer Services Technician   Open  
    
Safety Committee 
Next Safety Committee meeting is September 30 @ 10:00 a.m.  Injuries and Property Damage were down 
during July, with the exception of mowing, which was average for the growing season. Mr. Bart Martin with 

48



Finance Minutes - Final.doc   

Advantage Safety made a presentation on First Aid supplies and equipment in the last meeting.  Advantage 
Safety can provide first aid kits for work trucks and relevant safety training to various departments.  No new 
concerns were brought before the committee.  Safety Awards for the first half of 2015 to be ordered and 
distributed this month.  Approximately 10 employees will be attending a Safety Seminar in Summerdale on 
August 18

th
. 

 
HR projects/meetings: 

 Oral Board interviews for Fire Fighter were on July 29, 2015 

 Loss Control training on August 18, 2015 

 Benefits Fair – Registrations are coming in and door prizes are being purchased. A planning meeting 
will be on August 11, 2015 to discuss Vendor location and décor.  Naman’s will be catering a healthy 
and delicious lunch. Bingo cards will be distributed prior to the event.  

 
Mrs. Hinman noted the three PT School Crossing Guard should be hired and in place by the start of the school 
year.  Mrs. Hinman reviewed the open positions: Planner position duties are being reviewed by the Community 
Development Director, the Marketing Coordinator position has been offered and salary requirements are being 
reviewed, Executive Assistant has had several interviews, and the IT Computer Services Technician salary 
requirement are being reviewed.   Discussion continued on the Benefits Fair and Mrs. Hinman noted the 
Benefits Fair would be held September 2, 2015 from 11:00 a.m. – 2:00 p.m.. 

 

IV. CURRENT BUSINESS 
 

A. Approve previous months minutes 
The previous minutes were approved. 

 
B. Financial Reports 

 
1. Treasurer’s Report:  July, 2015 

 
    Mrs. Henson reviewed the Treasurer’s Report and noted:  

 Total Unrestricted Funds - $9,341,557                   

 Increase from Last Year’s Unrestricted Funds - $2,026,279 

 Total Restricted Funds - $8,317,235  

 Total City Funds - $17,658,792    

 # of months of Unrestricted cash to cover monthly operating Expenses & Debt Service – 4.2 months 
compared to the previous year -  4.4  months 

Included in the packet are graphs that show that activity is on track with the previous year. 
      

The Treasurer’s Report as of July 31, 2015 Total Unrestricted Funds – 9,341,557             
and Total City Funds - $17,658,792 was presented to be filed for audit.  
 

2.  Sales and Use Taxes: May, 2015 
 

Mrs. Henson reviewed the Sales & Use Tax Reports and Graphs: $1,252,030.17 was collected for May, 2015: 

 YTD Variance over Budget - $(12,741.89)          

 Increase from last year’s collections   $49,903.51;  + 4.2% 
 

3.  Lodging Tax Collections,  May, 2015 

 
Mrs. Henson reviewed the Lodging Tax Collections Report and noted the collections for May, 2015 were 
$111,337.21 which is down ($16,583.16)  from May, 2014’s collections of $127,920.37.  

 YTD Variance over Budget:    $46,965 

 Percentage change YTD from last year’s collections:  +24.7% 
 

 4.  Lodging Tax Fund : Statement of Revenues over Expenditures, July, 2015  
 

49



Finance Minutes - Final.doc   

Mrs. Henson reviewed the Lodging Tax Statement of Revenues over Expenditure report for July, 2015.  Mrs. 
Henson noted the following balances: 

 Unreserved balance for Bayfront related purchases  - $2,022,977  

 Recreation related purchases  -  $679,966   

 
5.  Correction/Court Fund Report, June, 2015 

Mrs. Henson reviewed the Correction/ Court Fund Report and reported that no monies were required to be 
transferred for June and $18,332.15 has been transferred year to date from the court portion of the fund to the 
corrections for the purchase of inmate meals.   

 
6. Financial Statements: 

a. General Fund Balance Sheet , May 2015 
b. General Fund Statement of Rev Over Exp , May 2015 
c. Debt Service Fund Statement of Rev Over Exp, May 2015 
d. Debt Service Summary Activity for General Fund through May 2015    
e. Debt Service Summary Activity for Enterprise Funds through May 2015    
f. Agency Funds Combining Statement of Assets and Liabilities, May 2015 
g. Special Revenue Funds Balance Sheet,  May 2015 
h. Special Revenue Funds Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes 

in Fund Balance,  May 2015  
i. Capital Projects Funds Balance Sheet, May 2015  
j. Capital Projects Funds Statement of Rev Over Exp, May 2015 
k. Enterprise Funds Statement of Net Position, May, 2015 
l. Enterprise Funds Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net 

Position, May 2015 
m. Summary of FEMA/NRCS Projects, May 31, 2015 

 
Ms. Kichler reviewed the statements listed above.  Discussion continued on the statements.  Ms. Kichler said if 
there were any questions to just let her know.  Ms. Kichler noted that she had included a summary of the 
FEMA/NRCS projects through May 3 
1, 2015 and  a summary of all appropriations that had been made since the FY2015 Budget was adopted.  Ms. 
Kichler stated that total appropriations year to date is $1,198,252. 
 

7. Bills Paid Reports –  July, 2015 

 
The Bills Paid Report was presented in the packet. 
 

C. Appropriation Request: (Ordinance) 
LODGING TAX FUND:  (Ordinance) 

1. 2015-N-Village Point Park Preserve Trail Extension-  $12,488 {Total Project cost - 

$131,325.10-$118,837.20 (Ord#2014-55: Grant $88,623.20 + Appropriations-$30,214) = $12,487.90}  
 

Mr. Eringman reviewed the Village Point project and the additional appropriation that is needed to complete this 
project.  Mr. Lake noted that he had several call requesting markers be installed on the boardwalk.  Mr. Johnson 
stated he would follow up on that request and see if Public Works could install the markers. 

 

Motion by Mr. Scott to recommend to Council to adopt an Ordinance to appropriate  
additional funds in the amount of $12,488  from the Lodging Tax Fund for the Village 

Point Park Preserve Trail Extension project.  Seconded by Mr. Lake.  Motion carried. 
 

          D.  Bid: (Resolution) 
             1.  2015-N-Village Point Park Preserve Trail Extension   

Motion by Mrs. Conaway  to recommend to Council to adopt the Resolution awarding 
the 2015- N-Village Point Park Preserve Trail Extension bid in the amount of $109,841 as bid to  

Asphalt Services, Inc..  Seconded by Mr.  Scott.  Motion carried. 
 

50



Finance Minutes - Final.doc   

E.  Fire Station #2 Roof  
 
An appropriation request was forwarded from Buildings & Properties Committee.  Discussion continued that the 
other building repairs were needed besides the roof.  Discussion continued to authorize the Fire Station #2 to go 
out to bid and the cost be considered in the FY2016 Budget. 

 

Motion by Mr. Scott to approve the Fire Station #2 roof repairs go out to bid.  Seconded 
by Mr. Lake.  Motion carried. 
 

F.  Daphne High School – Appropriation for Taste of Eastern Shore Fund Raising Event 
Discussion continued on forgiving the $5,000 annual loan payment due from DHS band for FY2015.  The Mayor 
expressed concerns on forgiving the annual loan payment since it was a contractual agreement.  Discussion 
continued on appropriating $5,000 to Daphne High School for the Taste of Eastern Shore event.  Mr. Scott 
noted that appropriating these monies to assist Daphne High School with event expenses will benefit all 
participating groups at the school.   

 

Motion by Mr. Scott to recommend to Council to adopt an Ordinance to appropriate  
$5,000 for the Daphne High School fund raising event: Taste of the Eastern Shore.  
Seconded by Mr. LeJeune.  Motion carried. 
 
 

G. ALDOT Funding agreement: Turning Lanes at Sehoy Boulevard and Longue Vue Boulevard – 
(Reference # 100064573 / 100064574). 

Mr. Johnson reviewed the Sehoy Boulevard and Longue Vue Boulevard project.  Mr. Johnson noted that 
ALDOT has separated the project into two agreements so there are two reference numbers listed.  Mr. Johnson 
noted the two resolutions are included in the handout that authorizes the Mayor to execute both funding 
agreements.  Mr. Johnson noted that Volkert Engineering is the next engineering firm to be selected in rotation. 
Mr. Johnson noted the project will back to the Finance Committee in September for an appropriation request for 
preliminary design engineering. 
 

Motion by Mr. Scott  to recommend to Council to adopt the Resolution authorizing the 
Mayor to execute the application for the ALDOT Funding agreement for Turning Lanes at 

Sehoy Boulevard and Longue Vue Boulevard – (Reference # 100064573 / 100064574). 
Seconded by Mrs.  Conaway.  Motion carried 
 

V. OLD BUSINESS 
 

A. Personnel Pay Plan Upgrade 
Original Archer plan that was previously presented was established to fix the pay table issue. The motion to 
include the $.40 increase would cost $430,000 and is logistically difficult to implement.   Discussion continued 
that the Mayor’s plan does not fix the pay table issue but does provide an increase for all employees.  Ms. 
Kichler stated she does not recommend merging the two plans as per the current amendment but adopting the 
original plan and including a flat rate increase in January and address the Public Safety pay scale separately.  
The Mayor discussed the work put into trying to establish the right pay plan and noted his plan takes the current 
plan and applies a consistent increase for all employees.  The Mayor discussed the need to address the 
Battallion Chief pay.  Discussion continued on the reclassification of the Fire Battalion Chief position from a 
Public Safety Grade 29 non-exempt to a Public Safety Grade 31 exempt status.  Ms. Kichler stated she thought 
this reclassification should be on a separate ordinance.  Discussion continued that a separate ordinance would 
help simplify and clarify the pay changes.   
 
Discussion continued on adopting the previously presented pay plan as follows: 

 a flat increase of $.25 ($54,500/ for FY16) for non-Directors/Deputy Directors effective January 2016,  

 a 1% increase ($37,500 for FY2016) effective January 2016 for employees on the Public Safety Pay Scale 

 the first half of new pay plan increase ($ 17,341 ) effective the first pay period of September 2015 

 the second half of the new pay plan increase ($121,384) effective the first pay period of August 2016   
The cost for FY16 would be $222,209 and a full annual year cost would be $342,520.  
 

51



Finance Minutes - Final.doc   

 

Motion by Mrs. Conaway to appropriate additional funds in the amount of $1,435 
from the General Fund for the reclassification of the Fire Battalion Chief position 
from a Public Safety Grade 29 non-exempt to a Public Safety Grade 31 exempt 
status and amend the Job Classification Schedule.  Seconded by Mr. Lake.  
Motion carried 

 
B. Justice Center Generator Update 

 
Mrs. Henson gave an update on the insurance claim for the Justice Center Generator.  The insurance 
representative had approved the purchase of a new Diesel generator and the four months rental fees to allow 
time for the delivery of the new generator.  Mr. Fry asked about the status of applying for a grant to purchase a 
new energy efficient natural gas generator.  Mr. Johnson stated that Mrs. Campbell, Environmental Program 
Manager would be working with Lt. Ric Yelding to apply for the FEMA Hazard Mitigation Grant.  Discussion 
continued on which City locations had generators and which were diesel.  Mr. Johnson stated that generators 
were located at Civic Center, Public Works, Fire Stations, City Hall, and Justice Center and the only two that are 
diesel are the ones located at City Hall and the Justice Center. 

 
VI. ADJOURN   The meeting adjourned at 6:00 p.m.  

 
 
 
 

52



53



54



55



56



57



58



Buildings & Property Committee Meeting 

Monday, August 3, 2015 

4:30 PM 

Daphne City Hall- Executive Conference Room 

Committee Minutes 

Present: Councilman Joe Davis (Chairman); Councilman Randy Fry; Councilwoman Tommie 

Conaway;  Councilman Pat Rudicell; Councilman Ron Scott; Councilman Robin LeJeune; 

Councilman John Lake; Melissa Wilt, Assistant City Clerk (recording secretary); Richard 

Johnson, Public Works Director; Margaret Thigpen, Civic Center Director; Rebecca Hayes, City 

Clerk; Kevin Boucher, City Attorney; Michael Burson, City Attorney; Ashley Campbell, Building 

Inspection; Tom Walker, Daphne Fire Department; Chief James White, Fire Department; Vicki 

Hinman, HR Director; Tonja Young, Library Director; Al Guarisco, Village Point Foundation, 

Selena Vaughn, Village Point Foundation  

Absent: Mayor Dane Haygood; Richard Merchant, Building Official; Suzanne Henson, Senior 

Accountant  

The meeting was brought to order at 4:33 pm by Chairman Joe Davis. 

1. Public Participation 

 

Selena Vaughn, Village Point Foundation, requested to be placed on September meeting agenda 

to present on the property behind Wendy’s. Chairman Davis agreed along with moving the 

bayfront property behind Foosackly’s to September agenda due to large amount of business to 

discuss this evening.   

 

2. Approval of Minutes: July 6, 2015 

 

There were no amendments requested to the minutes. Minutes stand as written. 

 

3. Lake Forest Park Report  

 

Richard Johnson commented that all tree work is complete. There is an open quote for 

resurfacing the west side that needs the Mayor’s approval. The waste baskets have been 

approved and Public Works will build benches in house. Public Works will continue to mow and 

check drainage. Richard mentioned the need to move forward on asphalt since area is prepped 

and ready. Once completed, people can start using park.  

 

Councilman John Lake arrived at 4:39pm 

 

Motion by Mr. Scott for Committee to submit letter to Mayor urging approval on asphalt 

proposal. Seconded by Mr. LeJeune.  Motion carried unanimously. 

Councilman LeJeune asked about a park name and signage; need recommendations. Ron Scott 

suggested Daphne Central Park.  

 

Motion by Mr. Scott to name park Daphne Central Park. Seconded by Mr. LeJeune.  

Motion carried unanimously. 

59



 

4. Surplus Property: Chairman Davis 

 

Chairman Davis reported there are five Crown Victorias under consideration for surplus. He 

believes there is an agency in Mississippi that may be interested in them.  

 

Motion by Mrs. Conaway to recommend the Resolutions for Surplus Property for adoption 

by the Council.  Seconded by Mr. Fry.  Motion carried unanimously.  

5. Civic Center, Bayfront, and CVB report (July): Margaret Thigpen  

 

Margaret Thigpen distributed and discussed her July report. July 2015 revenue for the Civic 

Center totaled $11,977, a decrease from July 2014 levels. Year-to-date revenues stood at 

$137,338.50, below figures listed for FY2014. She is projecting a $42,000 decrease for 2015 Year 

End Revenue from last year.  

Her research found there were fewer weddings than the previous year; however, they are gearing 

for a big year next year in weddings. There were a couple consignment groups that dissolved and 

did not hold events this year. She noted that corporate business has increased and she hopes to 

continue to increase corporate business since it’s a more stable market.  

 

Also mentioned: 

  

 Ms. Thigpen reported the Taste of the Eastern Shore event will keep current date of 

August 20th despite some issues with alcohol license.  

 Councilman Scott asked for an update regarding replacing the windows at Bayfront 

Pavilion. Ms. Thigpen replied that the quotes ranged around $16,000 for replacing 

windows as is.   

 Ms. Thigpen reported the chiller had been fixed and were looking into a surge protector 

to hopefully eliminate future damage. Councilman Lake recommended looking into hard 

wire protection for other facilities – Recreation Center and Library. Richard Johnson 

mentioned each department would have to review their budgets but he would get quotes.  

 Committee discussed current AC issues in City Hall. Richard Johnson mentioned 

contract was not renewed with Synergy to manage AC system, and he is researching 

other options. Councilman Lake questioned if contract renewal was brought to Council 

for vote. Councilman Davis asked Kevin Boucher to look into original contract with 

Synergy for terms of use.  

 Councilman LeJeune asked if the Civic Center has received bookings from Mobile since 

the Mobile Civic Center will be closing. Ms. Thigpen responded no, the Daphne Civic 

Center is a smaller space than that of Mobile. The Daphne Civic Center not having an 

alcohol license will be a disadvantage as well.  

 

6. Building Inspection Monthly Reports (July):  Ashley Campbell 

 

Ashley Campbell reviewed the building report for the month of July. The department issued 133 

permits during July, with total job valuation of $8,291,643.16 with permit fees totaling 

$68,730.70. She reported 14 new residential/commercial construction projects initiated. 

 

 

 

60



7. DRA Bike Racks, Daphne Art Center & Ruff Wilson Youth Center 

 

Richard Johnson reported 6 of the 8 locations for the bike racks have been installed; waiting on 

the right of entry approval across from Catholic Church. The Daphne Art Center Roof Repair will 

be underway if approved by Council in the Council meeting this evening. Work has been issued 

to the contractor for the Ruff Wilson Youth Center. The AC has been replaced and he is getting 

list on everything that needs to be done. 

Committee discussed confusion on the look of the bike racks and the need for a demonstration 

or picture of bikes tied to bike rack so residents know how to use them.    

 

8. Fire Station #2 & Library 

 

Chief White presented to the Committee results from a mold test done at Fire Station #2. There 

are 22 leaks in the building. He has put an estimate for repairs in the capital budget to be 

addressed. Tom Walker stated the 1st floor was built by a contractor and the 2nd floor was built 

by volunteers in 1996. Mayor stated the need to move forward with this project immediately. 

Councilman Rudicell noted we should have the amount available in reserves next week.  

 

Councilman Scott questioned the mold issue in the Library. Ms. Young commented that it has 

been an ongoing issue even since trying to correct it last year. Richard Johnson explained the 

system was redone; however, there were execution issues and the current issues should be under 

warranty to correct. Thought the company had already corrected issue but will follow up.  

 

Committee discussed the need to survey of all city buildings periodically to ensure safety. 

Chairman Davis noted that it is not uncommon for little things to get missed and become big 

issues. Committee discussed the role department heads should play in inspections; questioned if 

building inspector position had been filled. Mayor stated department heads are not equipped to 

perform inspections and need to find a way to be proactive. Committee discussed educating 

department heads and creating a checks and balances.  

 

Mayor recommended motion for $75,000 for roof repairs at Fire Station #2 to Finance 

Committee.  

 

Motion by Mr. Scott to refer repair of upper roof, lower roof and vapor barrier of Fire 

Station #2 to the Finance Committee and recommend it for a $75,000 appropriation based 

on more definitive pricing. Seconded by Ms. Conaway. Motion carried unanimously.  

 

Chief White expressed concerns with two fire stations to be under construction at the same time; 

whether fire fighters can stay during repairs at Fire Station #2. Richard Johnson said he would 

need to confirm and get more information.  

 

9. Gibbs Property (155 Bay View Drive) 

 

Ashley Campbell reported that the property experienced flooding during the major storm in 

April 2014. They evaluated the property and the drainage remains the same; City may need to 

survey. Lakeview Loop experienced flooding and the City purchased two homes. Building 

Inspection has been to property twice; Ashley reminded Committee it just takes time.  

 

61



Mr. Scott mentioned he thought we built accordingly. Ashley responded it was designed for 100 

year event, not 500 year event. Richard Johnson added the need to reestablish flood plane; there 

is no quick fix.  

 

With no further business to discuss, the meeting was adjourned at 5:36 by 

Chairman Davis. 

Next meeting will be held Monday, September 7th at 4:30pm.  

62



63



64



65



66



67



68



69



70



71



72



73



74



RESOLUTION 2015 - 52 
 
 

A RESOLUTION DECLARING CERTAIN PERSONAL PROPERTY SURPLUS  AND 
AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR TO DISPOSE OF SUCH PROPERTY 

 
WHEREAS,  the Department Heads of the City of Daphne have determined that the items listed 
below are no longer required for public or municipal purposes;  and 
 
WHEREAS, the items listed below are recommended for disposal. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED,  by the Mayor and City Council of the City of Daphne that  

1- The property listed below is hereby declared to be surplus property, and 
 

  DEPT EQ/VEH# DESCRIPTION     VIN

Patrol 3040 2004 FORD CROWN VIC 2FAFP71W14X137883

Patrol 7060 2006 FORD CROWN VIC 2FAFP71W56X148789

Patrol 5060 2006 FORD CROWN VIC 2FAFP71W16X148787

Patrol 4060 2006 FORD CROWN VIC 2FAFP71WX6X148786

Patrol 2060 2006 FORD CROWN VIC 2FAFP71WX6X115254  
 
 

          2- The Mayor is authorized to advertise and accept bids through Govdeals.com as  
               contracted for the sale of such personal property, and 
 
          3-  The Mayor is authorized to sell said property to the highest bidder and deposit any and      
               all  proceeds to the General Fund.  The Mayor is further authorized to direct the           
               disposition of any property which is not claimed by any bidder and sign all necessary                       
               documents. 
 
 
ADOPTED AND APPROVED BY THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
DAPHNE, ALABAMA, this               day of                     , 2015. 
           
      

                                                                                                                                                                                           

_____________________________ 

                                                                              Dane Haygood, Mayor 
       

 

ATTEST: 
___________________________ 

Rebecca A. Hayes, City Clerk 
 

 

 

75



CITY OF DAPHNE 
 

RESOLUTION 2015-53 
 

  2015-N-VILLAGE POINT PARK PRESERVE BOARDWALK/TRAILS EXTENSION             
(14–RT–54–08) 

  

WHEREAS, the City of Daphne is required under section 39-1-1(E) of the Code of Alabama to 
secure competitive bids for public works contracts in excess of $ 50,000; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Daphne acknowledges that VILLAGE POINT PARK PRESERVE 
BOARDWALK/TRAILS EXTENSION will exceed $50,000; and 
 

WHEREAS, the City of Daphne did heretofore make application to the Alabama Department of 
Economic & Community Affairs (ADECA) and was awarded $88,624 for the following 
improvements at the Daphne Village Point Park : 1270 LF of new Boardwalk/Trails (2014 PW-

031): 
 Construction of 800’ of ADA compliant wooden Boardwalk  

 Construction of 470’ of hard surface trail to connect the existing trail system in Village Point 
Park; and 

 
WHEREAS, such improvements will facilitate the recreational, environmental, and historical 
use of the Park by the citizens of Daphne; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Daphne did receive and review bids for the VILLAGE POINT PARK 
PRESERVE BOARDWALK/TRAILS EXTENSION and has determined that the bid as 
presented is reasonable; and 
 
WHEREAS, staff recommends the bid for VILLAGE POINT PARK PRESERVE 
BOARDWALK/TRAILS EXTENSION be awarded to Asphalt Services, Inc.. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, AND IT IS HEREBY RESOLVED, THAT THE 
MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF DAPHNE, hereby accept the bid from 
Asphalt Services, Inc. in the amount of $109,841 as specified in BID SPECIFICATION NO. 
2015-N-VILLAGE POINT PARK PRESERVE BOARDWALK/TRAILS EXTENSION.   
 
 

APPROVED AND ADOPTED by the City Council of the City of Daphne, Alabama, this         
day of                      , 2013. 
 

 
                                                                                                                                                                                              

                                                                      _________________________________ 
                                                                       Dane Haygood, Mayor 
                                                                            
 
ATTEST: 
 
___________________________ 
Rebecca A. Hayes, City Clerk  

76



77



78



79



80



81



CITY OF DAPHNE 

 

RESOLUTION NUMBER: 2015-54 
 

 

ALDOT Funding Agreement - Preliminary Engineering program for Project STPOA-0215 ( ), 

Project Reference Number 100064573 for intersection improvements - turning lanes at Sehoy 

Boulevard and Longue Vue Boulevard 

 

BE IT RESOLVED, by the City Council of the City of Daphne, Alabama as follows: 

 

1. That the City enters into an Agreement with the State of Alabama, acting by and 

through the Alabama Department of Transportation for: 

 

 Preliminary engineering program for Project STPOA-0215 ( ), Project Reference 

 Number 100064573 for intersection improvements - turning lanes at Sehoy Boulevard 

 and Longue Vue Boulevard in the City of Daphne; which Agreement is before this 

 Council. 

 

2. That the Agreement be executed in the name of the City, by its Mayor, for and on its 

behalf. 

 

3. That the Agreement be attested by the City Clerk and the seal of the City affixed 

thereto. 

 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that upon the completion of the execution of the 

Agreement by all parties, that a copy of such Agreement be kept on file by the City Clerk. 

 

Passed, adopted and approved this    day of     , 20    . 

 

ATTESTED: 

 

              

City Clerk        Mayor 

 

 

I, the undersigned qualified and acting clerk of the City of Daphne, Alabama, do 

hereby certify that the above and foregoing is a true copy of a resolution passed and 

adopted by the City Council of the City named therein, at a regular meeting of such 

Council held on the    day of    , 20  , and that such 

resolution is on file in the City Clerk's office. 

 

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed the official 

seal of the City on the    day of     , 20    . 

 

 

 

              

City Clerk 

82



83



84



85



86



87



88



89



90



91



92



93



94



95



96



97



98



99



100



101



102



103



104



105



106



107



108



109



110



CITY OF DAPHNE 

 

RESOLUTION NUMBER: 2015-55 
 

ALDOT Funding Agreement – Construction program for Project STPOA-0215 ( ), Project 

Reference Number 100064574 for intersection improvements - turning lanes at Sehoy 

Boulevard and Longue Vue Boulevard 

 

BE IT RESOLVED, by the City Council of the City of Daphne, Alabama as follows: 

 

1. That the City enters into an Agreement with the State of Alabama, acting by and 

through the Alabama Department of Transportation for: 

 

 Construction program for Project STPOA-0215 ( ), Project Reference  Number 

100064574 for intersection improvements - turning lanes at Sehoy Boulevard  and 

Longue Vue Boulevard in the City of Daphne; which Agreement is before this 

Council. 

 

2. That the Agreement be executed in the name of the City, by its Mayor, for and on its 

behalf. 

 

3. That the Agreement be attested by the City Clerk and the seal of the City affixed 

thereto. 

 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that upon the completion of the execution of the 

Agreement by all parties, that a copy of such Agreement be kept on file by the City Clerk. 

 

Passed, adopted and approved this    day of     , 20    . 

 

ATTESTED: 

 

              

City Clerk        Mayor 

 

 

I, the undersigned qualified and acting clerk of the City of Daphne, Alabama, do 

hereby certify that the above and foregoing is a true copy of a resolution passed and 

adopted by the City Council of the City named therein, at a regular meeting of such 

Council held on the    day of    , 20  , and that such 

resolution is on file in the City Clerk's office. 

 

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed the official 

seal of the City on the    day of     , 20    . 

 

 

 

              

City Clerk 

111



112



113



114



115



116



117



118



119



120



121



122



123



124



125



126



127



128



129



130



131



132



133



134



135



136



137



138



139



CITY OF DAPHNE 
RESOLUTION NO.  2015 - 56 

 
REVISIONS TO CITY OF DAPHNE STREET MAP 

___________________________________________________________ 
 
 WHEREAS, the Planning Commission of the City of Daphne, Alabama at their regular 
meeting held on July 30, 2015 approved a favorable recommendation to the City Council of the 
City of Daphne, Alabama for a revision to the City of Daphne Street Map and presented at said 
meeting; and 
 
 WHEREAS, said revision to street map is necessary due to additional streets being 
added to and accepted by the City; and 
 
 WHEREAS, due notice of said revisions to the City of Daphne Street Map has been 
provided to the public as required by law through publication and open display at the City of 
Daphne Public Library and City Hall; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Daphne, Alabama, after due consideration, 
and upon the recommendation of the Planning Commission of the City of Daphne, believes it is 
in the best interest of the health, safety and welfare of the citizens of the City to accept the 
revisions to the City of Daphne Street Map; and 
 
 NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
DAPHNE, ALABAMA, as follows: 
 
 SECTION I: ADOPTION OF MAP 
 
 THAT the City of Daphne Street Map was considered by the City of Daphne Planning 
Commission on July 30, 2015, and having made a favorable recommendation to the City 
Council and said revised map being attached hereto as Exhibit “A” is hereby adopted as the 
official “City of Daphne Street Map.” 
 
 SECTION II: REPEALER 
 
 THAT Resolution No. 2014-45 entitled “Revisions to City of Daphne Street Map” is 
hereby repealed in it’s entirety and any Resolution(s) or parts of Resolution(s) conflicting with 
the provisions of this Resolution are hereby repealed insofar as they conflict. 
 
 SECTION III: EFFECTIVE DATE 
 
 THAT This Resolution shall take effect and be in force from and after the date of its 
approval by the City Council of the City of Daphne, Alabama. 
 
 ADOPTED AND APPROVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF DAPHNE, 
ALABAMA ON THIS THE ________  DAY OF ____________,  2015.    
                       
       ________________________ 
       DANE HAYGOOD,  

MAYOR 
        
ATTEST: 
 
__________________________ 
REBECCA A. HAYES,  
CITY CLERK 

140



141



142



143



ORDINANCE 2015-36  
Amendment “A”  

 
An Ordinance Amending the City of Daphne Pay Plan and Appropriation of Funds  

 
WHEREAS, Ordinance 2004-52 as adopted January 3, 2005 established the City of 
Daphne Job Classification Schedule; and 
 
WHEREAS, Ordinance 2014-44 approved and adopted the Fiscal Year 2015 Budget on 
September 23, 2014 which funded approved personnel positions for the City; and 
 
WHEREAS, subsequent to the adoption of the Fiscal Year 2015 budget, the City 
Council has determined that certain appropriations are required and should be 
approved and made a part of the Fiscal Year 2015 budget; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Archer Company prepared a comparison salary survey in 2012 and 
recommended a percentage based increase for all positions but due to the economic 
conditions at that time the budget did not allow those personnel increases to be 
implemented; and 
 
WHEREAS,  recent evaluations of the current pay plan have shown that City salaries are 
not in line with current market salary rates; and  
 
WHEREAS, a proposed new pay plan has been created with the 2012 salary survey as 
the basis and adjustments made to stay in line with surrounding municipalities pay scale 
for Directors; and 
 
WHEREAS,  updates to the pay plan also include all COLA, merit, and step increases that 
have been given to City personnel since the 2012  survey was prepared; and 
 
WHEREAS, after further review, the City Council recommends that the proposed Pay Plan 
as attached be implemented. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Daphne, 
Alabama, that:  

1) Amend Ordinance 2015-09 and 2015-27  to include the Finance Director’s CPA 
Certification pay-$12,000 and a portion of the Treasurer’s pay $7,000 (adjusting the 
Treasure’s pay supplement to $5,000) in the new pay plan, and 

2)  Appropriate from the General Fund one-half of the increase for the new pay plan 
effective the first pay period of September, $17,341  and the second half on the first pay 
period of September 2016 (FY16-$121,384).   

3)  Appropriate a flat increase of the greater of $.40 or 2% for non-Directors/Deputy Directors for 
a total cost of $427,939.  

 

APPROVED AND ADOPTED by the City Council of the City of Daphne, Alabama, this 
______ day of ___________, 2015. 
      
     __________________________________ 
     Dane Haygood, Mayor 
ATTEST: 
 
___________________________ 
Rebecca Hayes, City Clerk 

144



ORDINANCE 2015-36 
AMENDMENT “B” 

 
An Ordinance Amending the City of Daphne Pay Plan and Appropriation of Funds  

 
WHEREAS, Ordinance 2004-52 as adopted January 3, 2005 established the City of Daphne 
Job Classification Schedule; and 
 
WHEREAS, Ordinance 2014-44 approved and adopted the Fiscal Year 2015 Budget on 
September 23, 2014 which funded approved personnel positions for the City; and 
 
WHEREAS, subsequent to the adoption of the Fiscal Year 2015 budget, the City Council has 
determined that certain appropriations are required and should be approved and made a part of 
the Fiscal Year 2015 budget; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Archer Company prepared a comparison salary survey in 2012 and 
recommended a percentage based increase for all positions but due to the economic conditions at 
that time the budget did not allow those personnel increases to be implemented; and 
 
WHEREAS,  recent evaluations of the current pay plan have shown that City salaries are not in line 
with current market salary rates; and  
 
WHEREAS, a proposed new pay plan has been created with the 2012 salary survey as the basis 
and adjustments made to stay in line with surrounding municipalities pay scale for Directors; and 
 
WHEREAS,  updates to the pay plan also include all COLA, merit, and step increases that have 
been given to City personnel since the 2012  survey was prepared; and 
 
WHEREAS, after further review, the City Council recommends that the proposed Pay Plan as 
attached be implemented. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Daphne, 
Alabama, that:  

1) Amend Ordinance 2015-09 and 2015-27  to include the Finance Director’s CPA 
Certification pay-$12,000 and a portion of the Treasurer’s pay $7,000 adjusting the 
Treasure’s pay supplement to $5,000 in the new pay plan, and 

2)  Appropriate from the General Fund one-half of the increase for the new pay plan 
effective the first pay period of September, 2015 - $17,341  and the second half on the 
first pay period of September 2016 (FY16-$121,384).   

3)  Appropriate a flat increase of $.25 ($64,786 for FY16) for non-Directors/Deputy Directors 
effective the first pay period starting in January 2016 on the regular pay scale,  

4) Appropriate a 1% increase ($36,039 for FY2016) effective the first pay period starting in 
January 2016 for employees on the Public Safety Pay Scale 

5) The total cost for FY16 would be $222,209 and a full annual year cost would be $342,520. 
 

APPROVED AND ADOPTED by the City Council of the City of Daphne, Alabama, this ______ 
day of ___________, 2015. 
 
        _________________________ 
        Dane Haygood, Mayor 
ATTEST: 
 
___________________________ 
Rebecca A. Hayes, City Clerk 
 

145



ORDINANCE NO. 2015 – 45 

 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE POLICY FOR COMMUNITY GRANTS BY THE 

CITY OF DAPHNE ADOPTED BY ORDINANCE 2014-16 

BE IT THEREFORE ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF DAPHNE, 

ALABAMA, THAT ORDINANCE NO. 2014-16  SHALL BE AMENDED AS FOLLOWS: 

SECTION 1:  Section 3 of Ordinance 2014-16 Applicability is hereby amended to provide 

for an exception to the aforesaid Ordinance.  Said Section 3 shall be deleted and replaced by the 

following: 

 Outside entities which provide public benefit, but not direct financial benefit, to the City of 

Daphne may only be funded by the City of Daphne in accordance with the CGP (Community 

Grants Program) established herein. The CGP shall not apply to contributions and requests for 

contributions for memberships, dues, or contributions to entities whose efforts provide direct 

revenue to the City of Daphne.  The City Council and Mayor shall jointly decide which entities 

must enter the CGP and which entities qualify under the aforementioned 

membership/dues/contributions exception to the CGP. Only upon extraordinary circumstances 

shown, the City Council may consider an exception to the terms and conditions of this ordinance.  

This exception may be granted by no less than five members of the City Council voting to approve 

such an exception.   

SECTION 2:   Severability. The sections, paragraphs, sentences, clauses and phrases of this 

Ordinance are severable, and if any phrases, clause, sentence, paragraph or section of the Ordinance 

shall be declared unconstitutional by a court of competent jurisdiction, then such ruling shall not 

affect any other paragraphs and sections, since the same would have been enacted by the City 

Council without the incorporation of any such unconstitutional phrase, clause, sentence, paragraph 

or section. 

SECTION 3:   Full Force and Effect. Except as specifically repealed, all remaining 

provisions of Ordinance 2014-16 and all amendments thereto shall remain in full force and effect. 

 

SECTION 4:   EFFECTIVE DATE. Provision of this amendment shall be effective and 

operative upon execution of this Ordinance. 

 

ADOPTED AND APPROVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

DAPHNE, ALABAMA, THIS ___ DAY OF ________________, 2015. 

 

 

________________________________ 

Dane Haygood, Mayor 

 

         

 

ATTEST: 

 

____________________________________________ 

Rebecca A. Hayes, City Clerk 

 

 2 
146



 

CITY OF DAPHNE, ALABAMA 

ORDINANCE NO. 2015-46  

 

   

Ordinance to Pre-Zone Property Located at the 

Southwest Corner of the Intersection of Champions Way and Alabama Highway 181 

The Bills’ No. 2, LLC 

 

 

 
 WHEREAS, The Bills’ No. 2, LLC as the owner of certain real property located within the 

unincorporated area of Baldwin County, Alabama, has requested that said property be pre-zoned from 

RSF-1, Single Family Residential District, Baldwin County District 15 to PUD, Planned Unit 

Development District, City of Daphne; and 

 

WHEREAS, said real property is located at the southwest corner of the intersection of 

Champions Way and Alabama Highway 181, and more particularly described as follows:  

 

Legal Description for Pre-zone: 

 
PER INSTRUMENT #639914 OF BALDWIN COUNTY PROBATE RECORDS: 

THE NORTH HALF OF THE SOUTHEAST QUARTER OF SECTION 3, TOWNSHIP 5 

SOUTH, RANGE 2 EAST, BALDWIN COUNTY, ALABAMA, AND THE WEST HALF OF 

THE NORTHWEST QUARTER OF THE SOUTHWEST QUARTER OF SECTION 2, 

TOWNSHIP 5 SOUTH, RANGE 2 EAST, BALDWIN COUNTY ALABAMA. 

 

WHEREAS, at the regular Planning Commission meeting on June 25, 2015, the 

Commission considered said request and set forth a unanimous favorable recommendation; and, 

 

WHEREAS, due notice of said proposed pre-zoning has been provided to the public as 

required by law through publication and open display at the Daphne Public Library and City 

Hall, a public hearing was held before the City Council on August 3, 2015; and, 

 

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Daphne after due consideration and upon 

consideration of the notes of the Planning Commission, deemed that said application for pre-

zoning of the above described real property is proper and in the best interest of the health, safety 

and welfare of the citizens of the City of Daphne, Alabama;  and 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 

CITY OF DAPHNE, ALABAMA, as follows: 

 

SECTION I: ZONING 

 

That above described real property is hereby pre-zoned from RSF-1, Single Family 

Residential District, Baldwin County District 15, to PUD, Planned Unit Development District, City 

of Daphne, and that the zoning ordinance and zoning map be amended to reflect the said zoning 

change. 
 

SECTION II: REPEALER.  

 

 All other City Ordinances or parts thereof in conflict with the provisions of this Ordinance, 

in so far as they conflict, are hereby repealed. 

147



 

 
ORDINANCE 2015-46                           PRE-ZONE THE BILLS’ NO. 2, LLC                      PAGE   2 
 

 

SECTION III: SEVERABILITY.  
 

 The provisions of this Ordinance are severable. If any provision, section, paragraph, 

sentence, or part thereof shall be held unconstitutional or invalid, such decision shall not affect or 

impair the remainder of said Ordinance, it being the legislative intent to ordain and enact each 

provision, section, paragraph, sentence, and part thereof separately and independently of each 

other. 

 

SECTION IV: EFFECTIVE AND EXPIRATION DATE.  
 

 This Ordinance, and in particular the pre-zoning shall take effect after the date of its 

approval by the City Council of the City of Daphne and publication as required by law.  Pursuant 

to Code of Alabama (1975) Section 11-52-85, the zoning of the property, shall become effective 

upon the date the territory is annexed into the corporate limits, if any portion of the territory is 

not annexed into the corporate limits within 180 days of the initiation of annexation proceedings 

as provided by law then this pre-zoning shall be null and void. 

 

ADOPTED AND APPROVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

DAPHNE, ALABAMA, THIS           day of                    , 2015.       

                        

 

 

  _________________________________ 

 Dane Haygood,  

       Mayor 

ATTEST: 

 

 ______________________________ 

Rebecca A. Hayes, 

City Clerk 

148



149



150



CITY OF DAPHNE, ALABAMA 

ORDINANCE 2015-47  

 

ORDINANCE TO ANNEX PROPERTY CONTIGUOUS 

TO THE CORPORATE LIMITS OF THE CITY OF DAPHNE 

 

Property Located at the Southwest Corner of the Intersection of Champions Way and 

Alabama Highway 181 

The Bills’ No. 2, LLC 

 
 WHEREAS, on the 10

th
 day of June, 2015, being the owner of all real property hereinafter described, 

did file with the City Clerk a petition asking that the said tracts or parcels of land be annexed into and 

become part of the City of Daphne, Alabama; and 

 

 WHEREAS, said petition did contain the signatures of all owners of the described territory, and a 

map of said property showing its relationship to the corporate limits of the City of Daphne, Alabama; and 

 

WHEREAS, after proper publication, a public hearing was held by the City Council on August 3, 

2015 concerning the petition for annexation; and 

 

WHEREAS, said petition has been presented to the Planning Commission of the City of Daphne at a 

regular scheduled meeting on June 25, 2015, and the Commission set forth a unanimous favorable 

recommendation for the City Council of the City of Daphne to consider said request for annexation and 

said property; and 

 

 NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

DAPHNE, ALABAMA, AS FOLLOWS: 

 

 SECTION ONE:   ANNEXATION 

 

 The City Council of the City of Daphne, Alabama finds that and declares as the legislative body of 

the City of Daphne, Alabama that it is in the best interest of the citizens of the City of Daphne, Alabama 

and the citizens of the affected area, to bring the territory described in Section Two of this Ordinance into 

the City of Daphne, Alabama, and it did further determine that all legal requirements for annexing said 

real property have been met pursuant to Sections 11-42-20 through 11-42-24, et seq., Code of Alabama, 

1975; effective on publication as required by Section 11-42-21, Code of Alabama 1975, as amended. 

 

 

 SECTION TWO:  DESCRIPTION OF TERRITORY 

 

 The boundary lines of the City of Daphne, Alabama, be, and the same are hereby altered or 

rearranged so as to include all the territory hereto before encompassed by the corporate limits of the City 

of Daphne, Alabama and in addition thereto the following described property, to-wit: 

 
Legal Description for Annexation: 

 
PER INSTRUMENT #639914 OF BALDWIN COUNTY PROBATE RECORDS: 

THE NORTH HALF OF THE SOUTHEAST QUARTER OF SECTION 3, 

TOWNSHIP 5 SOUTH, RANGE 2 EAST, BALDWIN COUNTY, ALABAMA, AND 

THE WEST HALF OF THE NORTHWEST QUARTER OF THE SOUTHWEST 

QUARTER OF SECTION 2, TOWNSHIP 5 SOUTH, RANGE 2 EAST, BALDWIN 

COUNTY ALABAMA. 

151



ORDINANCE 2015-47                                         ANNEXATION  / THE BILLS’ NO. 2 LLC                                    PAGE   2 

 

  

 

SECTION THREE:   MAP OF PROPERTY 

 

The property hereby annexed into the City of Daphne, Alabama is set forth and described in Exhibit 

“A” and attached hereto a map of the property (Exhibit “B”) showing its relationship to the corporate 

limits of the municipality of the City of Daphne and made a part of this ordinance. 

 

SECTION FOUR: PUBLICATION 

 

 This Ordinance shall be published as required by Section 11-42-21 Code of Alabama 1975, as 

amended, and the property described herein shall be annexed into the corporate limits of the City of 

Daphne, and a certified copy of the same shall be filed with the Office of the Judge of Probate of Baldwin 

County, Alabama as required by Section 11-42-21, Code of Alabama 1975, as amended. 

 

 APPROVED AND ADOPTED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF DAPHNE, 

ALABAMA, THIS THE ________ DAY OF ________________, 2015. 

 

 

 

  _________________________________ 

 Dane Haygood,  

       Mayor 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 ______________________________ 

Rebecca A. Hayes, 

City Clerk 

152



153



154



ORDINANCE 2015-48 
 

Alabama Dept of Economic & Community Affairs (ADECA) 
Additional Appropriation for: Recreational Trails Program Project: Village Point 

Park Preserve Boardwalk/Trails Extension – Project#14-RT-54-08 
 
WHEREAS, Ordinance 2014-44 approved and adopted the Fiscal Year 2015 Budget on 
September 23, 2014; and 
 
WHEREAS, subsequent to the adoption of the Fiscal Year 2015 budget, the City Council has 
determined that certain appropriations are required and should be approved and made a part of the 
Fiscal Year 2015 budget; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Daphne did heretofore make application to the Alabama Department of 
Economic & Community Affairs (ADECA)  and was approved for funding I the amount of 
$88,624 for the following improvements at the Daphne Village Point Park : 1270 LF of new 
Boardwalk/Trails 
(2014 PW-031): 

 Construction of 800’ of ADA compliant wooden Boardwalk  

 Construction of 470’ of hard surface trail to connect the existing trail system in Village 
Point Park; and 

 
WHEREAS, an appropriation was approved in Ordinance 2014-55 for matching funds for the 
grant in the amount of $ 30,214 in the Fiscal 2015 budget; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Daphne were received bids and total cost - $131,325 (construction-
$109,841 +engineering - $21,484). 
 
NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the Mayor and City Council of the City of Daphne 
that: 

1) The City of Daphne hereby accepted the offer of financial assistance from ADECA in 
the amount of $88,624 for the improvements (as herein stated) to the Daphne Village 
Point Park Preserve;  AND 

2) Funds in the amount of  $30,214 from the Lodging Tax Fund were hereby 
appropriated in Ordinance 2014-55 and made a part of the Fiscal Year 2015 budget 
for the construction of 1200 LF of Boardwalk/Trails at Village Point Park Preserve; 
AND 

3) Bids were received and additional funding is needed to complete the project in the 
amount of $12,488. 

4) The Mayor and City Clerk are hereby authorized to go out to bid for the project and 
execute the grant agreement and any other documents required for the acceptance 
of the ADECA Village Point Park Trail RTP Project# 14-RT-54-08 on behalf of the 
City of Daphne. 

 
APPROVED AND ADOPTED BY THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
DAPHNE, ALABAMA, this ________ day of _______________, 2015. 
 
 
       _________________________ 
       Dane Haygood, Mayor 
ATTEST: 
 
__________________________ 
Rebecca A. Hayes, City Clerk 

155



156



157



158



 
ORDINANCE 2015-49 

 
APPROPRIATION: DAPHNE HIGH SCHOOL FUND RAISER – TASTE OF 

EASTERN SHORE 
 
WHEREAS, Ordinance 2004-52 as adopted January 3, 2005 established the City 
of Daphne Job Classification Schedule; and 
 
WHEREAS, Ordinance 2014-44 approved and adopted the Fiscal Year 2015 
Budget on September 23, 2014 which funded the position of the Finance Director; 
and 
 
WHEREAS, Daphne High School will rent the Civic Center for a fund raiser event 
to support school programs; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Daphne recognizes Daphne High School and the 
importance of its programs to the City and the citizens of Daphne and the need 
for fund raising events to support their extracurricular programs; and 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Daphne, 
Alabama, that funds in the amount of $5,000 from the General Fund is hereby 
appropriated and made a part of the Fiscal Year 2015 budget for support of 
Daphne High School fund raising event: Taste of Eastern Shore. 
 
APPROVED AND ADOPTED by the Mayor and City Council of the City of 
Daphne, Alabama, this   ____     day of  ________________    , 2015. 
 
         
 
                                                                      ________________________________ 
      Dane Haygood, Mayor    
 
     
ATTEST: 
 
___________________________ 
Rebecca A. Hayes, City Clerk 

159



 
 
 

ORDINANCE 2015-50 
 

JOB RECLASSIFICATION:  
An Ordinance Approving the Job Reclassification of  

 Fire Battalion Chief Position 
 

WHEREAS, Ordinance 2004-52 as adopted January 3, 2005 established the City of 
Daphne Job Classification Schedule; and 
 
WHEREAS, Ordinance 2014-44 approved and adopted the Fiscal Year 2015 Budget on 
September 23, 2014 which funded the position of the Fire Battalion Chief; and 
 
WHEREAS, after further review, the City Council recommends that the Fire Battallion 
Chief position should be reclassified within the existing Job Classification Schedule. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Daphne, 
Alabama, that:  
 

1) The authorized position of the Fire Battalion Chief, shall be reclassified to 
Public Safety Grade 29 non-exempt to Public Safety Grade 31 exempt and 
the existing Job Classification Schedule shall be amended to include such 
revision; and    
 

2) The total annual increase of such reclassification is $12,433 ($ 10,626   
wages and $1,806 benefits)  

 
3) Appropriation from the General Fund in the amount of $1,435 for the 

remainder of FY2015. 
 
 
APPROVED AND ADOPTED by the City Council of the City of Daphne, Alabama, this 
______ day of ___________, 2015. 
 
      
      
     __________________________________ 
     Dane Haygood, Mayor 
ATTEST: 
 
___________________________ 
Rebecca Hayes, City Clerk 

160


	AGENDA
	ROLL CALL SHEET
	Council Minutes
	Council Work  Session Minutes
	Public Hearing Info ii
	Finance Minutes - Final
	Backup to Finance Minutes 8-17-15
	B+P Minutes 08.03
	Utility Board Minutes
	Events Permit - SEEDS 5K 2016
	ABC License - ES Chamber - Jubilee Festival
	2015-52 - RES - GOVDEALS.COM-2
	2015-53 - RES - ADECA-VP Park Preserve Boardwalk-Trails Ext
	Backup to 2015-53 - RES
	2015-54 - RES - ALDOT - Funding Agreement - Preliminary Project Reference Number 100064573  Engineering
	Backup to 2015-54 - RES - Engineering - STPOA-0215 Project Ref Number 100064573 Engineering
	Backup to 2015-54 - RES - Resolution 2015-46 - July 20 2015
	2015-55 - RES - ALDOT Funding Agreement - Construction -Project Reference Number 100064574
	Backup to 2015-55 - RES - ALDOT Contstruction Sehoy STPOA-0215 Project Ref Number 100064574 Construction
	Backup to 2015-55 - RES - Resolution 2015-46 - July 20 2015
	2015-56-  RES - Revision to STREET MAP - 8-17-15
	Backup to 2015-56 - RES
	2015-36 - ORD - Amendment #A - Pay Table Update
	2015-36 - ORD - Amendment B - Pay Table Update-w-Amendment#2
	2015-45 - ORD - Community Grant Amendment2
	2015-46 - ORD - PRE-ZONE -The Bills No. 2 LLC
	Backup to 2015-46 - ORD - Legal & Map for Prezone 
	2015-47 - ORD - ANNEXATION - The Bills No. 2 LLC
	Backup to 2015-47 - ORD - Legal & Map for Prezone  - Copy
	2015-48 - ORD - ADECA Grant-Rec Trails-Accept VP Park Presrv Enhanc-Add'l Approp
	Backup to 2015-48 - ORD
	2015-49 - ORD - DHS TOES Event
	2015-50 - ORD - Job Reclassification - Fire Battalion Chiefs



